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PREFACE

The EMAPS IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution User Guide is intended to provide
assistance to users of the EDFacts Metadata and Process System (EMAPS). This guide
demonstrates the steps necessary to enter IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution data and
navigate this survey in EMAPS.

This document will be updated if major system modifications affect user procedures and
is reviewed annually with each survey release.

Data entered into EMAPS are authorized by an Annual Mandatory Collection of
Elementary and Secondary Education Data Through EDFacts (OMB 1850-0925,
expires 08/31/2022). According to the Paperwork Reduction Act of 1995, no persons
are required to respond to a collection of information unless such collection displays a
valid OMB control number. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other
aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to
the U.S. Department of Education, 400 Maryland Ave., SW, Washington, DC 20210-
4537 or email ICDocketMgr@ed.gov and reference the OMB Control Number 1850-
0925.

EDFacts is a U.S. Department of Education (ED) initiative to govern, acquire, validate,
and use high-quality performance data for education planning, policymaking, and
management and budget decision-making to improve outcomes for students. EDFacts
centralizes data provided by SEAs, LEAs and schools, and provides users with the
ability to easily analyze and report data. This initiative has significantly reduced the
reporting burden for state and local data producers, and has streamlined data collection,
analysis and reporting functions at the federal, state and local levels.

October 2020 4 SY 2019-20


mailto:ICDocketMgr@ed.gov

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION EMAPS User Guide: IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution

CONTENTS
DOCUMENT CONTROL........cooeiieeeieeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e Error! Bookmark not defined.
L 4 = X O PO 4
1.0 INtrodUCHION ... nnnas 6
1.1  Technological REQUINEMENTS ...........uuiiiiieeiiieeicee e e 6
0 O 1= VT U 6
2.0 Frequently Asked QUESEIONS........ccoiiiiiiiiiiii i —————— 7
3.0 ACCESSING EMAPS ...ttt e s ss s s s e e s nnnnn s s e e e e e e e e n s 11
4.0 Accessing the IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Survey ..........ccocmieeeciiiiiinnnns 13
5.0 Completing the IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Survey ..........ccccerrrrrremnnnnnn. 16
5.1  General NaVIQatioN...........ccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeee e 16
5.1.1 Section A: Written Signed ComplaintS.........ccccoeeeviiviiiiiiiiie e 18
5.1.2 Section B: Mediation REQUESTS .......ccovviiiiiiiiiiiie e 19
5.1.3 Section C: Due Process COMPIAINtS ........ccoevviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 21
5.1.4 Section D: Expedited Due Process Complaints (Related to Disciplinary
[T o 153 o] o ) SRR 22
5.1.5  COMMENT BOX.otuiiiiiiiiiiie ettt e et e e eaa e e e eeaa e e aees 24
5.2  Fatal Errors on Data Entry FOImM ......ccoooviiiiiiiii e 25
6.0 Review and Submit ... 26
6.1 No Failed Edit CheCKS ......cooeeiiiiiee e 26
6.2  Failed Edit CheCKS .....ccoo i 26
7.0 Accessing State Reports.........coiiiieeeeiiiiiiir s s s s e s s as 29
8.0 Glossary of Data Elements...........cccooiiiiin s 31

October 2020 5 SY 2019-20



U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION EMAPS User Guide: IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution

1.0 Introduction

The EDFacts Metadata and Process System (EMAPS) is a Web-based tool used to
provide State-Lead Agencies with an easy method of reporting and maintaining (1) data
to meet Federal reporting requirements, and (2) information on state policies, plans, and
metadata in order to aid in the analysis of data collected.

1.1 Technological Requirements

EMAPS will work in all browsers, but Chrome is recommended for the best
performance.

NOTE! EMAPS is unavailable from 8:00 a.m. ET to 2:00 p.m. ET on Saturdays for
regularly scheduled maintenance.

1.2 Overview

This survey has been developed to collect data authorized under Part B of the
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA). This information is entered by the
IDEA Part B Data Managers. The survey provides information on the following and is
organized to provide the counts for the number of occurrences in the following sections:

e Written, signed complaints, which are defined as a signed, written document
submitted to the state education agency (SEA) by an individual or organization
(complainant) that alleges a violation of a requirement of Part B of IDEA of 34
CFR Part 300, including cases in which some required content is absent from the
document.

e Mediation requests, which are defined as a request by a party to a dispute
involving any matter under Part B of IDEA for the parties to meet with a qualified
and impartial mediator to resolve the dispute(s).

e Due process complaints, which are defined as a filing by a parent or public
agency to initiate an impartial due process hearing on matters relating to the
identification, evaluation, or educational placement of a child with a disability, or
the provision of a free appropriate public education to the child.

e Expedited due process complaints, which are defined as due process complaints
filed by: (1) the parent of a child with a disability (IDEA) who disagrees with any
decision regarding the manifestation determination and/or disciplinary removal of
a student from an educational placement and the placement of that student in an
interim alternative educational setting; or (2) a local educational agency that
believes that maintaining the current placement of the child is substantially likely
to result in injury to the child or to others.

This report shall be run for 50 states plus the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, U.S.
Virgin Islands, Bureau of Indian Education, outlying areas American Samoa, Guam, and
Northern Marianas, and freely associated states Micronesia, Northern Marianas and
Palau.
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2.0 Frequently Asked Questions

Below is a list of frequently asked questions regarding the EMAPS IDEA Part B Dispute
Resolution Survey process. Additional questions about how the process works or
suggestions for enhancements to the process should be directed to the Partner Support
Center at EDEN_SS@ed.gov.

What is the primary use of this information?
The IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Survey provides the U.S. Department of Education
(ED) information on the counts of occurrences for the following:

Written, signed complaints
Mediation Requests

Due process complaints
Expedited due process complaints

The data collected using this survey is required by the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act (IDEA), Section 618.The data are also used for monitoring the programs
and activities under IDEA and reported by the Office of Special Education Programs
(OSEP)’s Annual Report to Congress on the Implementation of IDEA.

Who may have access to the IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Survey for my
state?

The Office of Special Education Programs (OSEP) identified state IDEA Part B Data
Managers as the state expert for this information. Each state’s IDEA Part B Data
Manager has been granted read/write access to the EMAPS online survey.

Each EDFacts Coordinator has been granted read only access to their state’s Part B
Dispute Resolution Survey. If the Part B Data Manager wishes to authorize someone
else to complete this survey, please contact the Partner Support Center (PSC) with the
name and e-mail address of the new user(s).

Phone: (877) 457-3336
Email: EDEN_SS@ed.gov
Federal Relay Service: 800-877-0996 (Voice/TTY) /Federal relay@sprint.com

The PSC is open from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. ET, Monday through Friday, excluding
Federal holidays.

Will the system send notifications?
EMAPS will send notifications to IDEA Part B Data Managers at the following times:

e When the system is open;

e When data have been submitted,;

e When there has been no account activity, notifications will be sent two weeks
and three days prior to due date;

e When data have been entered, but not submitted three days prior to due date;
and
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e |If there are data with edit check warnings in the submissions three days prior to
due date.

Additionally, when the system is reopened for data resubmission, notifications will be
sent:

e When there is a data quality inquiry.

e When the system has been reopened.

e When there was a data quality inquiry and updated data has not been submitted
one week prior to close of the reopen period.

e One week prior to the close of the reopen period.

When are the data due?
The survey will open Monday, October 5, 2020, and the completed survey is due no
later than 11:59 p.m. ET on Wednesday, November 4, 2020.

There will be a reopen period between May 3, 2021 and May 26, 2021. The data will be
frozen at 11:59 p.m. ET on May 26, 2021, to be used by OSEP in the Annual Report to
Congress, public reporting of the IDEA Section 618 data, OSEP SPP/APR, and ad hoc
requests. States will receive notification from OSEP of follow-up needed via email after
the due date and prior to May 3, 2021.

Do not submit preliminary or placeholder data just to meet the submission deadline. The
submission of the survey responses will be assessed by OSEP for timeliness,
completeness, and passing edit checks. Data submissions with missing data elements
are rated by OSEP as incomplete.

The review of data for accountability purposes will be based on data in EMAPS as of
11:59 p.m. ET on the due date.

Are all states required to submit the IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Survey via
EMAPS for SY 2019-207?

Yes. For SY 2019-20, the Part B Dispute Resolution Survey will be submitted by all 50
states, the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, U.S. Virgin Islands, Bureau of Indian
Education, outlying areas American Samoa, Guam, Marshall Islands and freely
associated states Micronesia, Northern Marianas and Palau.

What reporting year will this data collection cover?

The IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Survey covers an entire year of counts. For the SY
2019-20 data collection, the reporting year is defined as July 1, 2019 through June 30,
2020.

NOTE! Report only the actions initiated during the 2019-20 reporting year. Do NOT
include actions initiated in a previous reporting year that continued into the 2019-20
reporting year.

When are zero counts permitted in this survey?
A zero count should be entered only if the state conducted a count for that data element
and there were no occurrences to report in the specific category for the given reporting
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period. Zero is the default value which appears when a submitter first enters the Data
Entry Form.

When should I report Missing?

Report a count as Missing when the State did not collect or cannot report a count for
the specific category. To designate data as missing, select Missing. If a zero is entered
after checking the Missing box, the system will accept that response.

When can | revise my state’s survey after the due date?

The survey will be accessible for modification of the data between May 3, 2021 and May
26, 2021. Be aware that the last version submitted as of 11:59 p.m. ET on the original
due date will be the version ED will use to review the data for accountability purposes.
Data publically reported and used by OSEP will be the last submission as of the close of
the system on May 26, 2021 (formerly known as the freeze date). Draft versions will not
appear in the report repository.

Can | make corrections to the submitted survey before the due date?

Yes. Previously submitted versions of the survey can be overwritten by entering the
survey process, making updates and submitting the survey again. There are no limits to
the number of times the survey can be submitted. A history of all submitted versions will
be archived in the Reports folder within EMAPS.

NOTE! ED will use only the latest submitted version of the survey on the due date for
reporting purposes.

If | enter the Part B Dispute Resolution survey more than once, will previously
entered data show?

Yes, as long as the Save As Draft button was selected and no fatal errors were
detected, the previously entered information will display.

Should written settlement agreements finalized after a resolution meeting but
during the 30 day resolution period be reported in Section C: Due Process
Complaints 3.1(a) — written settlement agreements reached through resolution
meetings?

Yes, States should include all written settlement agreements reached through resolution
meetings during the 30-day resolution period in Section C: Due Process Complaints
3.1(a). This includes written settlements finalized during a resolution meeting, as well as
those finalized after the meeting, as long as they are finalized during the 30-day
resolution period.

NEW! Can | turn off automated emails?
To stop automated EMAPS emails during the reopen period notifying the state a
resubmission or data note is required, a new Data Note checkbox is available.

e Selecting the Data Note checkbox is optional. States should select the Data Note
checkbox if they have addressed the data quality issue(s) through a data note
and do not wish to receive additional reminders.
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e Once selected and “Save Response” is pressed, the Data Note checkbox is
inactivated and cannot be deselected.

EMAPS reminder emails requesting a resubmission or data note will not be sent. States
can select the Data Note checkbox and resubmit updates to their EMAPS data. To edit
state data after the checkbox is selected, states can log back into the EMAPS survey
and edit it as usual.

NOTE! Selecting the Data Note checkbox stops automated reopen emails regarding
resubmission or data note requirement only. This does not stop all automated emails
from being sent.

Whom do | contact for login problems or technical assistance with the EMAPS
website?
For login and technical assistance, please contact the Partner Support Center:

E-mail: eden_ss@ed.gov
Telephone: 877-457-3336 (877-HLP-EDEN)
Federal Relay Service: 800-877-0996 (Voice/TTY) / federalrelay@sprint.com

PSC is open from 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. ET, Monday through Friday, excluding Federal
Holidays.

NOTE! Users should also contact PSC for content and policy-related questions.
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3.0 Accessing EMAPS

To access the EMAPS login screen, go to https://emaps.ed.gov/suite/. A Department of
Education approved warning banner will appear. Accept the terms of the consent to
monitoring before accessing the application (see fig. 3.1).

@®EMAPS

EDFacts

Warning

You are accessing a U.5. Federal Govemment computer system intended to be
solely accessed by individual users expressly autherized to access the system by
the U.S. Department of Education. Usage may be monitored, recorded, andfor
subject to audit. For security purposes and in order to ensure that the system
remains available to all expressly authorized users, the U.S. Department of
Education monitors the system to identify unauthorized users. Anyone using this
system expressly consents to such monitoring and recording. Unauthorized use of
this information system is prohibited and subject to criminal and civil penalties.
Except as expressly authorized by the U.S. Department of Education, unauthorized
attempts to access, obtain, upload, modify, change, and/or delete information on
this system are strictly prohibited and are subject to criminal prosecution under 18
U.5.C § 1030, and other applicable statutes, which may result in fines and

tramednanooont Car seonanon of thin aontoos amoothadsod annono ioolodon ek in

I AGREE

Figure 3.1 — Department of Education approved warning banner

NOTE! EMAPS will work in all browsers, but Chrome is recommended for the best
performance.

Enter the assigned EMAPS username and password into the appropriate fields (see fig.
3.2). Both the EMAPS username and password are case sensitive. If you experience
issues logging into EMAPS, please contact PSC (FAQ Section, 2.0).

@®EMAPS

EDFacts

]
44}
|
3¢}

Forgot your password? SIGN IN

Figure 3.2 — EMAPS Login Screen
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To log out of EMAPS, select the profile icon in the top right hand corner and select Sign

Out (see fig. 3.3).

Signed in as Testerl

& PROFILE £ SETTINGS

= SIGN OUT I

@E Jlll.-"{fl.r;'ll. .n"FJ r_.a
BO¢ acic

Figure 3.3 — EMAPS Logout Screen
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4.0 Accessing the IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Survey
Once logged into EMAPS, the EDFacts Portal Landing Page will display.

Click the Dispute Resolution survey link located under the IDEA Part B section (see
fig. 4.1).

Figure 4.1 — EMAPS EDFacts Portal Page

NOTE! The Paperwork Burden Statement is available on the EDFacts Portal Landing
Page.

Select the IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution [state’s name] SY 2019-20 link to enter
the IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Survey (see fig. 4.2).

B
REPOIRTS

Q & AE AN g SEARCH

IE IEA Part B Dispute Resolution Aripona 5Y 20159-20

Figure 4.2 — IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Survey Access

The system will redirect to the Summary tab of the survey (see fig. 4.3) where the
following will be available:

October 2020 13 SY 2019-20




U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION EMAPS User Guide: IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution

a. Information about the survey;
b. Instructions for completing the survey; and
c. Survey User Guide.

E REFORTS IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution = ?E..-’..—.; -]

IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Arizona SY 2019-20

Data Enery Resviesy and Submit State Reports  Relared Actions

About the Survey

This survey has been devaloped to collect data authorized under Part B of the Individuals with Disabilites Education Act {IDEAL This information is entered by the IDEA Part B Data Man agers. The surey provides infor mation on the
flleing ane is crganized b previde te coums for the numiser of seerrences in the fallewing sectians

» Wiritten, sgned complaims, which are defined as a signed, weitten docurment submitted 1o the state education agency (SEA) by an individual or erganization (complainant) that aleges a violation of a requirement of Part B of IDEA of
34 CFR Pant 300, including cases in which some réquired content is absent fram the docurment.

+ Mediation requests, which are defined as & request by & party to a dapute irvalving any matter under Part B of IDEA for the parties to mest with & qualfied and impartial mediator to resolve the disputels).

+ Due precess carmplaints, which ace defined 22 & fling by 4 parent or pubise sgency i initiste an irpartial due process hearing an matters relsting te the identfication, evsiustion, or educatienal placerment of a child with a dizabdty,
ar e provision of & free spproprists public sducation Lo the child,

+ Expedited due process camplaints, which are defined a3 due process oarmplaints filed by: (1) the parent of a child with & disabsa@ty (IDEA) whao dsagrees with any decision regarding the manifestation determination andfor discipinary
removal of a student Trom an educational placerrent and the placement of that student in am interirm alemative educational seting: or (2] a local educational agency that believes that maintaining the curent placement of the child
is substantially likely to result in injury to the child or to others

Instructions

Hanigate through the survey by cicking on the link for sach section, cicking on "UPDATE DATA" on top right, ansaering sach guestion, and then clicking the "SAVE AS DRAFT button located 8t the bottom of sach screen. When you elice
the "SAVE AS DRAFT button, if no e ror messages are generated, the responses you entered wil be saved and the page becomes a read-only revies, You may return b any section by clicking the links a1 the top of the screen. You rmay
eniler oF ehange Answers to Guestions ary Lme price (o the system close, sven i responses Lo qUestons wers saved, of you preously subeitted yeur data,

Oee yau have eserpleted all seetions, be sure to review your survey an e Rediew and Submit page and elic: on the "SUBMIT? butten after reviesing yaur SLales respenses.

Foor gquestions, pease contact the Partrer Suppart Center {PSC) &1 B77-457-3336 or EDEN_S5@ed gew. For TTY services, please contact Federal Relay Service at BOO0SE77-09096 / federalrel sy@sprintcom.

User Guide

EAdAPS | DEA Part B Digpute Reschution Uger Guide

Figure 4.3 — Summary Page

NOTE! During the reopen period (only), the Summary tab (see fig 4.3) will include a
checkbox, for states to indicate that they have submitted a data note. Once the
checkbox has been checked, the Save Response button will appear. Once the Save
Response button is selected, the Data Note checkbox cannot be deselected. When the
Save Response button is selected, the status of the survey will change to Submitted
and the HTML report will regenerate.

About the Survey

Instructions

-] ua-m

User Guide

Figure 4.4 — Save Response Button to Data Note Checkbox (reopen only)

To return to the EDFacts Portal at any time, choose EDFacts Portal from the dropdown
menu in the top right corner (see fig. 4.5).
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IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution - @ ?E'

Figure 4.5 — Dropdown Menu

NOTE! A warning is generated by the system after 30 minutes of inactivity. To avoid
losing data, click within the EMAPS survey form, or select Continue when the inactivity
warning message is displayed.
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5.0 Completing the IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Survey

The IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution navigation menu contains five tabs (see fig. 5.1).
To navigate into a section, select on its corresponding tab.

IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Arizona SY 2019-20
Dats Entry Foessienn & e Subyrmil State Reparts Related Actions

Figure 5.1 — IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Survey Navigation Menu

Summary: Provides a summary of the IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Survey,
instructions for completing the survey and a link to the EMAPS IDEA Part B Dispute
Resolution Survey User Guide.

Data Entry: This section allows users to input data directly into the form and save a
draft version of the survey.

Review and Submit: This form is where IDEA Part B Data Managers review the
warnings and edit checks or submit the survey to the database.

State Reports: Review the HTML reports for each IDEA Part B Survey submitted by the
state for each year the survey has been in EMAPS.

Related Actions: This tab contains Update Data link to edit the survey. Once the
survey has been Saved as a Draft, a Verify Data link will appear to review the edit
checks and submit the survey to the database.

5.1 General Navigation

To begin submitting the IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Survey, select the Data Entry
tab (see fig. 5.2). The Survey form consists of four sections:

Section A: Written, Signed Complaints

Section B: Mediation Requests

Section C: Due Process Complaints

Section D: Expedited Due Process Complaints (Related to Disciplinary Decision)

The questions will first display in view-only mode. To manually enter responses, select
the Update Data button(see fig. 5.2).

IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution - @ ?E— PS5

IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Arizona SY 2019-20

y QOECISTON  Review and Subrmit  State Reparts  Related Ations

Figure 5.2 — Data Entry tab and Update Data button
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Data entry fields will display t

o allow manual counts or comments to be entered (see fig.

5.3). An asterisk will appear above fields that are required. Keep the following in mind
when completing these sections:

a. When entering counts for the survey, complete each section by entering a
numeric integer value for each of the data fields provided.

b. Zeros appear as the default values in the survey data fields.

c. Zero counts should be entered only if a state conducted a count for that
data element and there were no occurrences to report in the specific
category for the given reporting period.

d. Report a count

as Missing when the state did not or cannot report a count

for the specific category. To report a count as missing, select the check

box Missing.

e. The survey data fields accept only an integer value.

Yesr 21520
& rmre ot shiaskd bo used when B wor

WEREE Dt 1T AiE HLBDE B Fod0 O0d VBT O
enmmaont bax a2 Bha hettom of the tunvey

Section & Written, Sgned Complaint

s n ter of wrilten sgned complsinis

Anzona - IDEA Part B Lispute Resolunion Lata Engry Form

B M SWENED £ GETUTENOES Eo repadd in Bhe spec il catogory far the ghven repor Sing peicd, Solect the
vl e 3 COur] fow [ SpebCiS Calegiry. Mease prosdoe &n ExplirsiUos Tor The ey &l |n e

Mg

Missing

Figure 5.3 — Data Entry Fields Enabled

At the bottom of each page, an optional comment box is available (up to 4,000
characters). Once all data have been entered, warnings have been reviewed, and data

are ready to be saved, select
Draft button, if no error mess

Save as Draft (see fig. 5.4) When you click the Save As
ages are generated, the responses you entered will be

saved and the page becomes a read-only review.

Please provide any additional information supplementing any of the questions on this form. if needed.

4000 Character Limit

‘ SAVE AS DRAFT '

Figure 5.4 — Data Entry — Save As Draft
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NOTE! If a user exits the survey without selecting the Save as Draft button, data will
not save and the EMAPS survey session will end. If fatal errors exist in the form, the
data will not save.

5.1.1 Section A: Written Signed Complaints

Row (1) (see fig. 5.5) displays the total number of written, signed complaints filed
between July 1, 2019 and June 30, 2020. The value is auto calculated for this section:
Row (1) = (1.1)+(1.2)+(1.3).

Arizona - IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Data Entry Form

Year 201520

A zero count should be used when there were no evends or coourrences o report in the specific categery for the given reporting period. Select the

lzzing box If the state did not collect or cannot report a count fior the specific category. Please provide an explanation for the missing data in the

comenent box at the bothemn of the suney.

Section A Written, Signed Complaints

(1) Tetal number of weitten sigred complains

filed. i)

(1.1 Cormplaints with reports issuesd. | b Missing
M

(1.11{a) Reparts with Fndings of

noncampliance o Miszing

(1.11{b} Reports within timelines, u Mizging
"

(11.1]{c} Reponts within extended timelines. 0 Missing

1.7 2 —— a e

(1.7) Cormplaints panding. Mizging
.

(1.2 &) Cormplaints pending a due process

Fisaring. a Missing

(1.3) Cormplaints withdrawn or dismisosd, o Missing

Figure 5.5 — Section A: Written, Signed Complaints

In row (1.1), enter how many of the written, signed complaints (row (1)) were complaints
with reports issued as of 60 days following the end of the reporting period; that is, enter
how many of the complaints had a written decision from the SEA as of August 29, 2020.
Row (1.1) is a subset of row (1).

In row (1.1) (a), enter how many of the reports issued were reports with findings
of noncompliance. Row (1.1) (a) is a subset of row (1.1).

NOTE! The difference between the number entered in row (1.1) and the number
entered in (1.1) (a) is the number of reports without findings of noncompliance. In
row (1.1) (b), enter how many of the reports issued were reports within timelines
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(60 days). Do NOT include any written decisions issued more than 60 days after
the written, signed complaint was filed. Row (1.1) (b) is a subset of row (1.1).

In row (1.1) (c), enter how many of the reports issued were reports within
extended timeliness. Row (1.1) (c) is a subset of row (1.1).NOTE! The difference
between the number in row (1.1) and the sum of the numbers entered in rows
(2.1) (b) and (1.1) (c) is the number of complaints with reports issued late (not
within the 60-day timeline or an extended timeline).

In row (1.2), enter how many of the written, signed complaints (row (1)) were complaints
pending as of August 29, 2020 (60 days following the end of the reporting period). Row
(1.2) is a subset of row (1).

In row (1.2) (a), enter how many of the pending complaints were complaints
pending a due process hearing. Row (1.2) (a) is a subset of row (1.2).

NOTE! The difference between the number in row (1.1) and the sum of the
numbers entered in rows (1.1) (b) and (1.1) (c) is the number of complaints with
reports issued late (not within the 60-day timeline or an extended timeline).

In row (1.3), enter how many of the written, signed complaints (row (1)) were complaints
withdrawn or dismissed as of August 29, 2020 (60 days following the end of the
reporting period). Row (1.3) is a subset of row (1).

5.1.2 Section B: Mediation Requests

Row (2) (see fig. 5.6) displays the total number of mediation requests received through
all dispute resolution processes between July 1, 2019 and June 30, 2020. The following
auto calculation formula shall be applied dynamically for this section:

Row (2) = (2.1)+(2.2)+(2.3).
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Section B: Mediation Reguests

] Mediations e ld o Missing
1{a) Medarans he alated o dus
ass complaint a Missing
1 {a) i} Misdliation agresment ated t

S 0 —

(2.7) Mediations panding, Missing

(2.3 Mediations withdrawn o ot eld Miszing

Figure 5.6 — Section B: Mediation Requests

NOTE! The sum of (2.1), (2.2), and (2.3) is equal to the total number of
mediations requested (row 2).

In row (2.1), enter how many of the mediation requests (row (2)) resulted in mediations
held as of the end of the reporting period (June 30, 2020). Row (2.1) is a subset of row

(2).

In row (2.1) (a), enter how many of the mediations held were mediations held
related to due process complaints. Row (2.1) (a) is a subset of row (2.1).

In row (2.1) (a) (i), enter how many of the mediations held related to due process
complaints resulted in mediation agreements as of the end of the reporting period
(June 30, 2020). Row (2.1) (a) (i) is a subset of row (2.1) (a).

NOTE! The difference between the number entered in row (2.1) (a) and the
number entered in row (2.1) (a) (i) is the number of mediations held related to
due process complaints that did not result in a mediation agreement.

In row (2.1) (b), enter how many of the mediations held were mediations held not
related to due process complaints. Row (2.1) (b) is a subset of row (2.1).

In row (2.1) (b) (i), enter how many of the mediations held not related to due
process complaints resulted in mediation agreements as of the end of the
reporting period (June 30, 2020). Row (2.1) (b) (i) is a subset of row (2.1) (b).
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NOTE! The difference between the number entered in row (2.1) (b) and the
number entered in row (2.1) (b) (i) is the number of mediations held not related
to due process complaints that did not result in a mediation agreement.

NOTE! The sum of (2.1) (a) and (2.1) (b) must equal the total number of
mediations held row (2.1).

In row (2.2), enter how many of the mediation requests (row (2)) were mediations
pending as of the end of the reporting period (June 30, 2020). This includes mediation
requests that were pending as of the end of the reporting period. Row (2.2) is a subset
of row (2).

In row (2.3), enter how many of the mediation requests (row (2)) were mediations
withdrawn or not held as of the end of the reporting period (June 30, 2020). Row (2.3) is
a subset of row (2).

5.1.3 Section C: Due Process Complaints

Row (3) (see fig. 5.7) displays the total number of due process complaints filed between
July 1, 2019 and June 30, 2020. Expedited due process complaints are to be included
in the counts entered in this section. Expedited due process complaints are also entered
separately in Section D below. The following auto calculation formula shall be applied
dynamically for this section: Row (3) = (3.2)+(3.3)+(3.4).

Section C: Due Process Complaints

3 Total number of due proceds cormplaints

Figure 5.7 — Section C: Due Process Complaints

In row (3.1), enter how many of the due process complaints (row (3)) resulted in a
resolution meeting as of the end of the reporting period (June 30, 2020). Row (3.1) is a
subset of row (3).
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In row (3.1) (a), enter how many resolution meetings resulted in a written
settlement agreement as of the end of the reporting period. Row (3.1) (a) is a
subset of rows (3.1) and (3.4).

NOTE! The difference between the number entered in row (3) and the number
entered in row (3.1) (a) is the number of resolution meetings held that did not
result in a written settlement agreement as of the end of the reporting period
(June 30, 2020).

In row (3.2), enter how many of the due process complaints (row (3)) resulted in
hearings fully adjudicated as of the end of the reporting period; that is, the due process
hearing was conducted, and the hearing officer issued a written decision by June 30,
2020. Row (3.2) is a subset of row (3).

In row (3.2) (a), enter how many of the written decisions were decisions within
timeline. (Do not include here the decisions within extended timelines.) Row (3.2)
(a) is a subset of row (3.2).

In row (3.2) (b), enter how many of the written decisions included in row (3.2)
were decisions within extended timelines. (Decision must be issued within
specific time extension granted by the hearing or reviewing officer). Row (3.2) (b)
is a subset of row (3.2).

In row (3.3), enter how many of the due process complaints (row (3)) were due
process complaints pending as of the end of the reporting period (June 30,
2020). Row (3.3) is a subset of row (3).

In row (3.4), enter how many of the due process complaints (row (3)) were withdrawn or
dismissed (including resolved without a hearing) as of the end of the reporting period
(June 30, 2020). Row (3.4) is a subset of row (3).

5.1.4 Section D: Expedited Due Process Complaints (Related to Disciplinary
Decision)

Row (4) (see fig. 5.8) displays the total number of expedited due process complaints
filed between July 1, 2019 and June 30, 2020. The expedited due process complaints
entered in row (4) are a subset of the due process complaints reported in row (3) of
Section C. The following auto calculation formula shall be applied dynamically for this
section: Row (4) = (4.2)+(4.3)+(4.4).
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Section e Expedited Due Process Cormpla
Ay Total numbser of expedited due process
complaints fed

(4.1) Expedited reselution mestings.

(417 &) Expedited witten seltiement
Agreaments.

(4.7 Expedited hearings fully adjudicated.

i42) (&) Change of placernent ondered,

{4.%) Expedited due process complants
pending.

(4.4) Expedited due proess com plants

wathdrawn or dismidded.

ints (Related po Disciplinary Decision)
-Cl Missing
.:' Missing
.9 Missing
.9 Missing
-9 Missing
.:' Missing

Figure 5.8 — Section D: Ex

pedited Due Process Complaints

In row (4.1) (see fig. 5.8), enter how many of the expedited due process complaints row

(4) resulted in a resolution meeting as of t
Row (4.1) is a subset of row (4). Row (4.1
entered in row (3.1) of Section C.

he end of the reporting period (June 30, 2020.
) is also a subset of the resolution meetings

In row (4.1) (@), enter how many resolution meetings resulted in a written
settlement agreement as of the end of the reporting period. Row (4.1) (a) is a
subset of row (4.1). Row (4.1) (a) is also a subset of the written settlement
agreements reported in row (3.1) (a) of Section C. An edit check will trigger on
the Review and Submit page if (4.1) (a) > (3.1) (a), (see fig. 5.9).

[£.1) Expadited resalution mestings. O

Missing

=

Expedited resobution meetings §4.1) exceed resolwiion mestings (310
Expediated rescéution meetings {4.1) exceed expodited due process complaints filed (4.

{4.17{a) Expadited veritte n seitlerment

AETEErTIET Missing

is. ] 2

Expedited vritten setternent agreements (4.9] {a) excesd written settiement sgreements reached through resolution meetings (3.1) {al

[£.2) Expadited hearings fully adudicated

Missing

=

Figure 5.9 — Section D: (4.1) and (4.1)(a) Edit Check Warning as seen in Review and Submit tab

In row (4.2), enter how many of the
resulted in expedited hearings fully

expedited due process complaints (row (4))
adjudicated as of the end of the reporting

period; that is, the due process hearing was conducted, and the hearing officer

issued a written decision by June 3

0, 2020. Row (4.2) is a subset of row (4). Row

(4.2) is also a subset of the hearings fully adjudicated reported in row (3.2) of

Section C.
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In row (4.2) (a), enter how many of the written decisions resulted in a change of
placement ordered. Row (4.2) (a) is a subset of row (4.2).

In row (4.3), enter how many of the expedited due process complaints (row (4)) were
expedited due process complaints pending as of the end of the reporting period (June
30, 2020). Row (4.3) is a subset of row (4).

In row (4.4), enter how many of the expedited due process complaints (row (4)) were
withdrawn or dismissed as of the end of the reporting period (June 30, 2020). Row (4.4)
is a subset of row (4).

NOTE! An edit check will trigger on the Review and Submit page if (4.2) is
greater than ((3.2) (a) and (3.2) — ((3.2) (a) + (3.2) (b)) is less than ((4.2) — (3.2)
(@)) (see fig. 5.10).

(4.2) Expedited hearings fully adjudicated. 64 Missing 4
Expedited hearings fully adjudicated (4.2) exceed hearings fully adjudicated (3.2).

(Expedited hearings fully adjudicated (4.2) exceed decisions within timeline (3.2){a)} and ings fully adjudi (3.2) - (decisions within timeline (3.2)(a) + decisions within extended timeline (3.2)(b)}) is less than (expedited hearings fully
adjudicated (4.2) - decisions within timeline (3.2)(a))).

Figure 5.10 — Section D: (4.2) Edit Check Warning

5.1.5 Comment Box

Provide additional information supplementing the questions asked in the survey by
utilizing the Comment box (see fig. 5.11) located at the bottom of the Data Entry form.
Please note this comment box has a 4000 character limit. If a count is submitted as
Missing, a detailed explanation should be provided in the comment box.

NOTE! Do not copy and paste into the comment box. Special hidden characters could
potentially cause problems with the database (ex. bullets).

Please provide any additional information ing any of the i on this form, if needed.

4000 Character Limit

SAVE AS DRAFT

Figure 5.11 — Comment Box

NOTE! A warning is generated by the system after 30 minutes of inactivity (see fig.
5.12). To avoid losing data, select within the EMAPS survey form.
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Your Session is About to Expire!

You will be logged out automatically if you do not
resume your session within the next 2 minutes.

Figure 5.12 — Timeout Warning

5.2 Fatal Errors on Data Entry Form

A fatal error will display in the Data Entry form when an unacceptable variable has been
entered into a data field. If a fatal error occurs on the Data Entry form, a draft version
cannot be saved (see fig. 5.13).

Errors may include the following:

e Missing is selected when a value has been provided
e A negative number is submitted
e The value is not an integer
e Afield is left blank
1) Total nurmber af written signed complaints
filescd. 4
Missing
{11y Complaimts with reports Bsoed. 4 Missing ks not a valid selection when a valse has been provided
=1
{1.1h (4} Reponts with findings of
manoormpliance. Musi be a posithee Integer hissing

Figure 5.13 — Fatal Errors

If there are errors on the screen, and the Save as Draft button is selected, an error
message will appear, and data will not save (see fig. 5.14).

Mease provide any additional information supplementing army of the guestions on this forrm, if needed.

Frofe detected - 20 shove. Data nat e

Figure 5.14 — Errors detected message
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6.0 Review and Submit

Once all data entry sections have been completed, select the Review and Submit tab
on the Dashboard. Review the data for completeness and accuracy. Neither the Submit
button nor the additional comment box will appear until the Verify Data button located
at the top right-hand side of this section has been selected (see fig. 6.1).

=3

IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution - @I @'E MAPS

IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Arizona SY 2019-20

rerary  DataEntry JCCRCOETSEIN Stste Reparts  Related Actions

Figure 6.1 — Verify Data Button

NOTE! If the survey browser window is closed without selecting Save as Draft, the data
will not save and the EMAPS session will end.

6.1 No Failed Edit Checks

If the data have passed all edit checks, the following message will be displayed: There
are no edit check warnings. Please submit the results of the survey by clicking
the ‘SUBMIT’ button. (see fig. 6.2).

Flease provide any additional information supplermenting any of the guestions on this form, if neaded.

There areno edit checswarnings. Please submit the results of the survey by clicking the "SUBMIT bution

Flease provide information to address edit checks violated abowve.

Figure 6.2 — No edit check warning

Once the Submit button is selected, an HTML report and a Year-to-Year Comparison
report will auto-generate. These reports can be accessed by selecting the State
Reports tab in the Survey navigation menu (reference Section 7.0 of this user guide for
additional information on HTML and Year-to-Year reports). The reports can also be
found under the Reports tab in the EMAPS navigation menu. The IDEA Part B Data
Manager will receive a confirmation email after the survey has been submitted to the
database. Once the survey has been submitted to the database, ED will have access to
the state’s survey responses as well.

Once the survey is successfully submitted, exit the survey by selecting a tab in the
EMAPS navigation menu to navigate to or by logging out of the EMAPS system.

6.2 Failed Edit Checks

If submitted data fails edit checks, the following warning message is displayed at the
bottom of the Review and Submit form with a list of all failed edit check logic in red font
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(see fig. 6.3): Please note that the data entered result in the following relationships
which violate edit checks:

Part B Dispute Resolution Edit Checks:

Question (1.1) (a) < Question (1.1)

Questions ((1.1) (b) + (1.1) (c)) < Question (1.1)
Question (1.2) (a) =< (1.2)

Questions ((2.1) (a) + (2.1) (b)) = Question (2.1)
Question (2.1) (a) (i) < Question (2.1) (a)
Question (2.1) (b) (i) < Question (2.1) (b)
Question (3.1) < Question (3)

Question (3.1) (a) < Question (3.1)

Question (3.1) (a) < Question (3.4)

Questions (3.2) (a) + (3.2) (b) < Question (3.2)
Question (4) < Question (3)

Question (4.1) < Question (3.1)

Question (4.1) < Question (4)

Question (4.1) (a) < Question (4.1)

Question (4.1) (a) < Question (3.1) (a)

Question (4.2) < Question (3.2)

Question (4.2) (a) < Question (4.2)

Question (4.2) is greater than Question (3.2) (a) and/or (Question (3.2) —
(Question (3.2) (a) + Question (3.2) (b)) is less than (Question (4.2) - Question
(3.2) (a))

e Question (4.3) < Question (3.3)

e Question (4.4) < Question (3.4)

Section & Written, Signed Complaints

{1) Total aurnber af written signed amplaints
filesd,

(1.9} Complaimts with reparts s ped i Msing

{1.1}{a) Reports with findings of

moncompliance. 3 Msing

Reparts with findings of noncomplilance {1.1.a) exceads complaints with reports lssued (1.1)

Figure 6.3 — Edit Check Warnings

A warning message will display at the bottom of the Review and Submit form with a list
of all failed edit check logic (see fig. 6.4) in red:
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Phease nobe that the data entered result in the following relationships which vielate edit checke: 1.1a = 11

Please provide information to addreds edit checks violated above.

Figure 6.4 — Edit Check Warning at end of Survey and Comment Box

To make any changes to the survey, select the Data Entry tab and select the Update
Data button update the appropriate data and save by selecting the Save as Draft (see

fig. 5.4) button. Navigate back to the Review and Submit tab to Verify Data and
Submit.

If the form must be submitted with edit check warnings present, use the comment box
(see fig. 6.5) located at the bottom of the Review and Submit tab to enter a comment
explaining why the data are being submitted with edit check warnings.

When the Verify Data button has been selected, the Submit button will appear at the
bottom right corner of the page. When the Submit button is selected, the system will
save all survey responses to the database (see fig. 6.5).

NOTE! The Verify Data button only appears once a draft has successfully been saved.

Thiere are no it check warnings. Please submit the results of the survey by clicking the 'SUBMIT buston.

Please provide information to sddress edit chacks violated above.

Figure 6.5 — Submit button

An HTML report and a Year-to-Year Comparison report will be auto-generated and
posted to the State Reports tab as well as the IDEA Part B Reports Folder. The IDEA
Part B Data Manager will receive a confirmation email after the data have been
submitted to the database.
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7.0 Accessing State Reports

The HTML and Year-to-Year Comparison reports can be accessed in one of two ways:
1. in the survey under the State Reports tab (see fig. 7.1); and
2. by navigating to the Reports tab in the EMAPS navigation menu.

IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution Arizona SY 2019-20
Surrimary Data Entry Reeiensy amd Subyrnit m Related Actions

File Marme File Type Creation Date | Submitter Name Email
Arizana Part B Dispute Resolition 201920 HTRAL R02020 10:04 AM EDT Testers, IDEA
Arimana Part B Year-to-Year Digpute Resolution 301930 CEN BI0202010:04 AM EDT Teaters, IDEA

Figure 7.1 — State Reports tab

Once a file name is selected, the HTML report will appear in a new tab of the internet
browser (see fig. 7.2).

@EMAPS

EDFacis

IDEA Part B - Dispute Resolution
School Year: 2019-20

Section A: Written, Signed Complaints

(1) Total number of written signed complaintz filed. 300
(1.1) Complamts with reperts issnad. 250
(1.1} (2) Beports with findingz of noncomphance. 3
(1.1} (1) Feports within timalines. 10
(1.1} () Beports within extandad timalines. it
(1.2) Complamts pending. 20
(1.2) (z) Complamt= pending 2 due process hearng. 25
(1.3) Complamts withdravwm or dizmuszed. 30

Section B: Mediation Requests

(2) Total number of mediation requests received through all dispute resolution processes. 604
(2.1) Mediations held. 600
(2.1) (z) Mediations held related to dus procsss complaints. 1
(2.1 (z) (1) Mediation agresments related to dus process complaints. 2
(2.1 (b) Madiations hald not related to due process complaints. 3
(2.1 (b) {1) Madiation agreemeants not ralated to due procezs complamts. a
(2.2) Mediztions pending. 4
(2.3) Mediztions withdrawm or not held. M

Figure 7.2 — HTML Report

Save this report to the computer desktop using browser options or print the report as a
hard copy.
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NOTE! The HTML and Year-to-Year Comparison reports will be generated each time
data are submitted to the database. The most recent reports available will be data in the
survey that was last submitted to the database and the collection ED will use for
analysis.

Any edit checks that are violated by the data submitted will be displayed on the HTML
survey report, located under the comment box (see fig. 7.3). These edits will appear as
they do in the Review and Submit form; edits on the HTML reports will not be
displayed in red text.

Comment:

Additional Comment:

Please note that the data entered result in the following relationships which violate edit checks: (1.1.b+11¢)>11,(32a+320b)>32

Figure 7.3 — Edit Check in HTML Report

To remove the edit checks from displaying in the HTML report, correct the data in the
Data Entry form. Re-submit the survey through the Review and Submit page to
overwrite the previous submission.

The Year-to-Year Comparison Report will open in Excel and may be used to compare
data from past years (see fig. 7.4). Each time a version of the survey is submitted, a
new version of this report will be generated. Take care to open the correct report by
referencing the time/date stamp.

EMAPS - IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution

Year 2019-20

State Name:

Created: &/25/20201:11 PM EDT Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Difference Difference % Change % Change
2017-18 2018-18 2019-20 Year1-2 Year2-3 Year1-2 Year2-3

(1) Total number of written signed complaints filed. a1 475 300 434 -175 1058.54 -36.84

(2) Total number of mediation requests received through all dispute resolution processes. 147531 348 604 -147183 256 -99.76 73.56

(3) Total number of due process complaints filed. 76304 156 120 -76148 -36 -99.8 -23.08

(4) Total number of expedited due process complaints filed. 4839 a0 160 -4749 70 -98.14 77.78

Figure 7.4 — Year-to-Year Comparison Report in Excel
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8.0 Glossary of Data Elements

Change of placement ordered — The hearing officer’s written decision in an expedited
due process hearing fully adjudicated ordered a change in placement of a child with a
disability (IDEA) to an appropriate interim alternative educational setting.

Complaint pending — A written, signed complaint that is either still under investigation
or the SEA’s written decision has not been issued.

Complaint pending a due process hearing — A written, signed complaint in which one
or more of the allegations in the complaint are the subject of a due process complaint
that has not been resolved.

Complaint with report issued — A written decision was provided by the SEA to the
complainant and public agency regarding alleged violations of a requirement of Part B
of IDEA.

Complaint withdrawn or dismissed — A written, signed complaint that was withdrawn
by the complainant for any reason or that was determined by the SEA to be resolved by
the complainant and the public agency through mediation or other dispute resolution
means, and no further action by the SEA was required to resolve the complaint; or a
complaint dismissed by the SEA for any reason, including that the complaint does not
include all required content.

Decision within extended timeline — The written decision from a hearing fully
adjudicated was provided to the parties in the due process hearing more than 45 days
after the expiration of the resolution period, but within a specific time extension granted
by the hearing or reviewing officer at the request of either party.

Decision within timeline — The written decision from a hearing fully adjudicated was
provided to the parties in the due process hearing not later than 45 days after the
expiration of the resolution period or in the case of an expedited due process complaint,
provided no later than 10 school days after the due process hearing, which must occur
within 20 school days of the date the expedited due process complaint is filed.

Due process complaint — A filing by a parent or public agency to initiate an impartial
due process hearing on matters relating to the identification, evaluation, or educational
placement of a child with a disability (IDEA), or the provision of a free appropriate public
education to the child.

Due process complaint pending — A due process complaint wherein a due process
hearing has not yet been scheduled or is scheduled but has not yet been held.

Due process complaint withdrawn or dismissed — A due process complaint that has
not resulted in a fully adjudicated due process hearing. This includes due process
complaints resolved through a mediation agreement or through a written settlement
agreement, those settled by some other agreement between the parties (parent and
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public agency) prior to completion of the due process hearing, those withdrawn by the
filing party, those determined by the hearing officer to be insufficient or without cause,
and those not fully adjudicated for other reasons. This does not include due process
complaints that are pending a due process hearing.

Expedited due process complaint — A due process complaint filed by: (1) the parent
of a child with a disability who disagrees with any decision regarding the manifestation
determination and/or disciplinary removal of a student from an educational placement
and the placement of that student in an interim alternative educational setting; or (2) a
local educational agency that believes that maintaining the current placement of the
child is substantially likely to result in injury to the child or to others.

Expedited due process complaint pending — An expedited due process complaint
wherein an expedited due process hearing has not yet been scheduled or is scheduled
but has not yet been held.

Expedited due process complaint withdrawn or dismissed — An expedited due
process complaint that has not resulted in an expedited fully adjudicated due process
hearing. This includes expedited due process complaints resolved through a mediation
agreement or through a written settlement agreement, those settled by some other
agreement between the parties (parent and public agency) prior to completion of the
expedited due process hearing, those withdrawn by the filing party, those determined by
the hearing officer to be insufficient or without cause, and those not fully adjudicated for
other reasons. This does not include expedited due process complaints that are
pending an expedited due process hearing.

Expedited due process hearing fully adjudicated — A hearing officer conducted a
due process hearing concerning an expedited due process complaint, reached a final
decision regarding matters of law and fact and issued a written decision to the parties
about whether a change of placement is ordered.

Hearing fully adjudicated — A hearing officer conducted a due process hearing,
reached a final decision regarding matters of law and fact and issued a written decision
to the parties.

Mediation agreement — A written legally binding agreement signed by a parent and a
representative of the public agency who has the authority to bind the public agency that
specifies the resolution of any issues in the dispute that were reached through the
mediation process. A mediation agreement that fully or partially resolves issues in
dispute is included in “mediation agreement.”

Mediation held — A process conducted by a qualified and impartial mediator to resolve
a disagreement between a parent and public agency involving any matter under Part B
of IDEA of 34 CFR Part 300, and that concluded with or without a written mediation
agreement between the parties.
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Mediation held not related to due process complaint — A process conducted by a
qualified and impartial mediator to resolve a disagreement between a parent and public
agency that was not initiated by the filing of a due process complaint or did not include
issues that were the subject of a due process complaint.

Mediation held related to due process complaint — A process conducted by a
qualified and impartial mediator to resolve a disagreement between a parent and public
agency that was initiated by the filing of a due process complaint or included issues that
were the subject of a due process complaint.

Mediation not held — A request for mediation that did not result in a mediation being
conducted by a qualified and impartial mediator. This includes mediation requests that
were withdrawn, mediation requests that were dismissed, requests where one party
refused to mediate, and requests that were settled by some agreement other than a
mediation agreement between the parties.

Mediation pending — A request for mediation that has not yet been scheduled or is
scheduled but has not yet been held.

Mediation request — A request by a party to a dispute involving any matter under Part
B of IDEA for the parties to meet with a qualified and impartial mediator to resolve the
dispute(s).

Report with findings of noncompliance — The written decision provided by the SEA
to the complainant and public agency in response to a written, signed complaint, which
finds the public agency to be out of compliance with one or more requirements of Part B
of IDEA of 34 CFR Part 300.

Report within extended timeline — The written decision from the SEA was provided to
the complainant and the public agency more than 60 days after the written, signed
complaint was filed, but within an appropriately extended timeline. An appropriately
extended timeline is an extension beyond 60 days that was granted due to exceptional
circumstances that exist with respect to a particular complaint; or if the parent and the
public agency involved agreed to extend the time to engage in mediation, or to engage
in other alternative means of dispute resolution, if available in the State or under State
procedures.

Report within timeline — The written decision from the SEA was provided to the
complainant not later than 60 days after receiving the written, signed complaint.

Resolution meeting — A meeting, convened by the local education agency (LEA),
between the parent(s) and school personnel to discuss the parent’s due process
complaint and the facts that form the basis of the due process complaint, so that the
LEA has the opportunity to resolve the dispute that is the basis for the due process
complaint.
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Resolution period — Thirty (30) days from the LEA’s receipt of a due process complaint
unless the period is adjusted because: (1) both parties agree in writing to waive the
resolution meeting; or (2) after either the mediation or resolution meeting starts, but
before the end of the 30-day period, the parties agree in writing that no agreement is
possible; or (3) if both parties agree in writing to continue the mediation at the end of the
30-day resolution period, but later, the parent or public agency withdraws from the
mediation process.

Written settlement agreement — A legally binding written document, signed by the
parent and a representative of the public agency, specifying the resolution of the dispute
that formed the basis for a due process complaint arrived at in a resolution meeting. For
the purposes of reporting the IDEA Part B Dispute Resolution data, a written settlement
agreement is one that fully resolves all issues of the due process complaint and negates
the need for a due process hearing.

Written, signed complaint — A signed, written document submitted to the SEA by an
individual or organization (complainant) that alleges a violation of a requirement of Part
B of IDEA of 34 CFR Part 300, including cases in which some required content is
absent from the document.
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The Department of Education’s mission is to promote student achievement and
preparation for global competitiveness by fostering educational excellence and ensuring
equal access.

www.ed.gov
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